To,

FORM NO PAS-4
Rule 14(3)
PART - A

PRIVATE PLACEMENT OFFER CUM APPLICATION LETTER

Cube Mobility Investments Pte. Ltd.
Address: 65 Chulia Street # 47-04 OCBC Centre, Singapore-049513

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

NO. DESCRIPTION DETAILS
A. Name, address, website, if any, and other | Name: Salaipudhur-Madurai Tollway Limited
contact details of the company indicating
both registered office and corporate Registered 5t FIOOI', OSE Commercial BlOCk,
office: office: Hotel Aloft Asset No. 5B, Aerocity
Hospitality Dist.,, IGI Airport, New
Delhi-110037
Corporate | Unit No. 1901, 19" Floor, Tower B,
Office: World Trade Tower, Plot No. C-1.
Sector-16, Noida-201301(UP)
Website: -
Contact +91 0120 4868307
No.
Email ID: | Pooja.agarwal@cubehighways.com
B. Date of incorporation of the company 13/12/2019
C. Business carried on by the company and | Toll, Operate and transfer for Road assets.
its subsidiaries with the details of
branches or units, if any
D. Brief particulars of the management of | As per Annexure-A
the company
E. Names, addresses, Director | As per Annexure A
Identification Number (DIN) and
occupations of the directors
F. Management’s perception of risk factors | External factors beyond the control of the




management such as government policies, general
economic slowdown, political instabilities etc.

G. Details of default, if any, including | N.A.
therein the amount involved, duration of
default and present status, in repayment
of

1)  statutory dues;

i1) debentures and interest thereon

ii1) deposits and interest thereon

loan from any bank or financial
institution and interest thereon.

H. Names, designation, address and phone | Name: Nilesh Shukla
number, email ID of the nodal/
compliance officer of the company, if
any, for the private placement offer | Address: H No. 19, AAUGAPUR, UTTAR
process PRADESH, AUGAPUR PRATAPGARH 230138
UPIN

Phone No.: 9999670530
Email ID: Nilesh.shukla@cubehighways.com

Designation: Director

I Any default in Annual filing of the | N.A.
Company under the Companies Act,
2013 or the rules made thereunder.

2. PARTICULARS OF THE OFFER

NO. | DESCRIPTION DETAIL
A. Financial position of the Company | The Company being a newly incorporated Company, the
for the last 3 financial years financial position for three financial years are not available.

The Financial Statements for Period December 13, 2019 to
March 31, 2020 are annexed as Annexure D.

B. Date of passing of board | September 28,2020
resolution

C. Date of passing of resolution in | October 03, 2020
the general meeting, authorizing
the offer of securities

D. Kinds of securities offered (i.e., | 50,09,200 (Fifty Lakh Nine Thousand Two Hundred)
whether share or debenture) and | Optionally Convertible Debentures of INR 200/- (Indian
class of security; the total number | Rupees Two Hundred only) each aggregating to INR
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of shares or other securities to be
issued

100,18,40,000/- (Indian Rupees One Hundred Crore Eighteen
Lakhs Forty Thousand only)

Price at which the security is being
offered including the premium, if
any, along with justification of the
price

INR 200/- (Indian Rupees Two Hundred only)

Name and address of the valuer
who performed valuation of the
security offered and basis on
which the price has been arrived at
along with report of the registered
valuer;

Name: Sumit Dhadda

Address: B-11, F No. 202, Moti Ashirwad Bldg., Dhruv
Marg, Tilak Nagar, Jaipur

Basis on which price has been arrived at: Discounted Cash
Flow Method

Report of the Registered Valuer: Attached as Annexure B

Relevant date with reference to
which the price has been arrived
at

[Relevant Date means a date at
least thirty days prior to the date
on which the general meeting of
the company is scheduled to be
held]

15" May, 2020

The class or classes of persons
to whom the allotment is
proposed to be made

Promoter of the Company — Cube Mobility Investments Pte.
Ltd.

Intention of promoters, directors
or key managerial personnel to
subscribe  to  the offer
(applicable in case they intend
to subscribe to the offer)

Cube Mobility Investments Pte. Ltd. (Promoter) directly
intends to subscribe to the proposed offer

The proposed time within which
the allotment shall be completed

As required under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Company shall complete the allotment of OCDs as
aforesaid within a period of 12 months from the date of
passing of the Special Resolution by the Members granting
consent for private placement




The names of the proposed Name of Number of Post
allottee(s) and the percentage | |shareholders | Equity Shares | Shareholding
of post private placement (%)
capital that may be held by them Cube 89,994 100%
Mobility
Investments
Pte. Ltd.
The change in control, if any, in | No change
the company that would occur
consequent to the private
placement
The number of persons to whom N
. o. of
allotment on preferential " 1 2 3
basis/private placement/ rights Allotment
issue has already been made Cube Cube Cube
during the year, in terms of Name of Mobility Mobility Mobility
nqmber of securities as well as Allottee Investments | Investments | Investments
price Pte. Ltd. Pte. Ltd. Pte. Ltd.
Date of 07.10.2020
29-06-2020 28-09-2020
Allotment
Optionally Optionally Optionally
Securities Convertible Convertible | Convertible
allotted Debentures | Debentures | Debentures
(OCDs) (OCDs) (OCDs)
Number and 28,000
. 60,000 OCDs 70,000
Price of OCDs of INR
. of INR 200/- | OCDs of INR
Securities 200/- each
each 200/- each
allotted
Total 56,00,000
Consideration | 1,20,00,000 | 1,40,00,000
(in INR)
The justification for the | N.A.

allotment proposed to be made
for consideration other than
cash together with valuation
report of the registered valuer

Amount which the company
intends to raise by way of
proposed offer of securities

INR 1,00,18,40,000 (INR One Hundred Crore Eighteen
Lakhs Forty Thousand only) by way of issuance of 50,09,200

(Fifty Lakh Nine Thousand Two Hundred only) Optionally
Convertible Debentures having face value of INR 200 each
at par on private placement basis to Cube Mobility
Investments Pte. Ltd.




Terms of raising of securities:
Duration, if applicable, Rate of
dividend or rate of interest, mode
of payment and repayment

Terms of raising of securities:

Duration: Redeemable on or before March 31, 2050 and can
be optionally converted into equity shares at any time during
its tenure

Rate of Interest: 13% (payable quarterly)

Mode of Payment and Repayment: FVCI route

Repayment: FVCI route or equity conversion

Terms of Conversion: The OCDs shall be optionally
convertible into equity shares at a ratio of 1:1

Proposed time schedule for which
the private placement offer cum
application letter is valid

12 months from the date of issue of offer letter

Purposes and objects of the offer

The issue is proposed to fulfil its financial obligations under
the Concession Agreement with respect to operation and
maintenance of Madurai to Kanyakumari section of NH 7
from KM 116+500 to KM 180+000 Project Highway along
with the Project Assets, in the State of Tamilnadu on toll,
operate & transfer (TOT) basis and for general corporate
purposes.

Contribution being made by the
promoters or directors either as
part of the offer or separately in
furtherance of such objects

Cube Mobility Investments Pte. Ltd. (Promoter) directly
intends to subscribe to the proposed offer

Principle terms of assets charged
as security, if applicable

N.A.

The details of significant and
material orders passed by the
Regulators, Courts and Tribunals
impacting the going concern
status of the company and its
future operations

N.A.

The pre-issue and post-issue shareholding pattern of the company in the following format:




Sr.
No.

Category

Pre-Issue

Post-Issue

No. of
Shares
(on a fully
diluted
basis)

% of
Shareholding
(on a fully
diluted basis)

No. of
Shares held
(on a fully
diluted
basis)

% of
Shareholding
(on a fully
diluted basis)

Promoters’
Holding:

Indian:

Individual

Body Corporate

Sub Total

Foreign
Promoters

89,994

100%

89,994

100%

Sub Total (A)

90,000

100%

90,000

100%

Non-
Promoters’
holding:

Institutional
Investors

Non-Institution

Private
Corporate
Bodies

Directors and
Relatives

Indian Public

Others
(Including Non-

Resident Indians
(NRIs))

Sub Total (B)

Grand Total

90,000

100%

90,000

100%

3. MODE OF PAYMENT FOR SUBSCRIPTION

Particulars

Details

Cheque/ Demand draft/ Other
Banking Channels

Bank transfer through FVCI route

4. DISCLOSURES WITH REGARD TO INTEREST OF DIRECTORS. LITIGATION ETC.

BN

Description

Detail




Any financial or other material
interest of the directors, promoters or
key managerial personnel in the offer
and the effect of such interest in so far
as it is different from the interests of
other persons.

Cube Mobility Investments Pte. Ltd. is directly interested
in the proposed offer

Details of any litigation or legal
action pending or taken by any
Ministry or Department of the
Government or a statutory authority
against any promoter of the offeree
company during the last three years
immediately preceding the year of the
issue of the private placement offer
cum application letter and any
direction issued by such Ministry or
Department or statutory authority
upon conclusion of such litigation or
legal action shall be disclosed

N.A.

Remuneration of directors (during the
current year and last three financial
years);

N.A.

Related party transactions entered
during the last three financial years
immediately preceding the year of
issue of the private placement offer
cum application letter, including with
regard to loans made or, guarantees
given or securities provided

As per Annexure D

Summary of reservations or
qualifications or adverse remarks of
auditors in the last five financial years
immediately preceding the year of
issue of the private placement offer
cum application letter and of their
impact on the financial statements
and financial position of the company
and the corrective steps taken and
proposed to be taken by the company

N.A.




for each of the said reservations or
qualifications or adverse remark

Details of any inquiry, inspections or
investigations initiated or conducted
under the Companies Act or any
previous company law in the last
three years immediately preceding the
year of issue of the private placement
offer cum application letter in the case
of company and all of its subsidiaries.
Also if there were any prosecutions
filed (whether pending or not) fines
imposed, compounding of offences in
the last three years immediately
preceding the year of the private
placement offer cum application letter
and if so, section-wise details thereof
for the company and all of its
subsidiaries

N.A.

Details of acts of material frauds
committed against the company in the
last three years, if any, and if so, the
action taken by the company

N.A.

5. FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

NO

DESCRIPTION

DETAIL




The capital structure of the company
in the following manner in a tabular
form-

®

A. authorized, issued, subscribed and
paid up capital (number of
securities, description and
aggregate nominal value);

B. size of the present offer;

C. Paid-up capital

a. After the offer;

b. After conversion of convertible
instruments (if applicable);

Authorized Capital: INR 7,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees
Seven Crores only)
Subscribed and Paid up Capital: INR 9 Lakhs

INR 1,00,18,40,000/- (Indian Rupees One Hundred Crore
Eighteen Lakhs Forty Thousand only) (OCDs)

INR 9 lakhs

If the Conversion option is exercised the paid up Capital shall
amount to INR 5,09,92,000 (Indian Five Crore Nine Lakh
Ninety Two Thousand only)

Nil
D. Share premium account (before and
after the offer)
(i1)) The details of the existing share | Annexure C

capital of the issuer company in a
tabular form, indicating therein with
regard to each allotment, the date of
allotment, the number of shares
allotted, the face value of the shares
allotted, the price and the form of
consideration

Provided that the issuer company shall
also disclose the number and price at
which each of the allotments were made
in the last one year preceding the date
of the private placement offer cum
application letter separately indicating
the allotments made for considerations
other than cash and the details of the
consideration in each case

Profits of the company, before and after
making provision for tax, for the three
financial years immediately preceding
the date of issue of private placement
offer cum application letter;

Since the Company has been recently incorporated in
December 2019, the financial statements are available only
for the period December 13, 2019 till March 31, 2020. The
Company has incurred a loss of INR 20 Lakhs during the
Period ended December 13, 2019 to March 31, 2020.




C. Dividends declared by the company in | N.A.
respect of the said three financial years;
interest coverage ratio for last three
years (Cash profit after tax plus interest
paid/interest paid)

D. A summary of the financial position of | The Company being a newly incorporated Company, the
the company as in the three audited | Audited Financial Statements for three financial years are not
balance sheets immediately preceding | available. The Financial Statements for Period December 13,
the date of issue of private placement | 2019 to March 31, 2020 are annexed as Annexure D.

offer cum application letter;

E. Audited Cash Flow Statement for the | The Company being a newly incorporated Company, the
three years immediately preceding the | Audited Cash Flow Statements for three financial years are
date of issue of private placement offer | not available. The Audited Cash Flow Statement for Period

cum application letter; December 13, 2019 to March 31, 2020 are included in
Annexure D.
F. Any change in accounting policies | N.A.

during the last three years and their
effect on the profits and the reserves of
the company.

Part B
(To be filled by the applicant)

Name of the Applicant: Cube Mobility Investments Pte. Ltd.

Father’s Name: N.A.

Complete Address including Flat/House No., Street, Locality, PIN Code:
65 Chulia Street # 47-04 OCBC Centre, Singapore-049513

Phone No., if any: +65 62066977

Email ID, if any: George.currie@isquaredcapital.com

PAN No.: AAHCT0951B

Bank Account Details:

Signature:

Initial of the officer of the Company designated to keep the record:

6. DECLARATION
L, Nilesh Shukla, Director of the Company hereby declare that:

a) the company has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder;
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b) the compliance with the said Act and the rules made thereunder do not imply that payment
of dividend or interest or repayment of preference shares or debentures, if applicable, is
guaranteed by the Central Government;

c) the monies received under the offer shall be used only for the purposes and objects
indicated in the private placement offer cum application letter;

I am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution dated September 28, 2020 to sign
this form and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder in
respect of the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto have been complied with.

Whatever is stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no
information material to the subject matter of this form has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the
original records maintained by the promoters subscribing to the Memorandum of Association and Articles
of Association.

It is further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly and
legibly attached to this form.

For Salaipudhur-Madurai Tollway Limited
N i | eS h Digitally signed

by Nilesh Shukla
Date: 2020.10.10
S h u kl d 14:05:22 +05'30"

Name: Nilesh Shukla

Designation: Director

DIN: 08617637

Address: H No. 19, Aaugapur, Uttar Pradesh, Augapur Pratapgarh-230138

Date: October 11, 2020
Place: Delhi

Attachments:

Copy of Bord Resolution dated September 28, 2020

Copy of Shareholder’s Resolution dated October 03, 2020
Annexure A — List of Directors

Annexure B — Valuation Report

Annexure C — Shareholding Structure

R W=
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ANNEXURE A

LIST OF DIRECTORS

Name

Designation

DIN

Address

Occupation

OM PRAKASH

DIRECTOR

07419617

A-410 DR. AMBEDKAR
NAGAR, SECTOR-V New
Delhi 110062 DL IN

SERVICE

BOVIN KUMAR

DIRECTOR

08571658

NGM 191, DLF NEW
TOWN HEIGHTS SECTOR
90, HAYATPUR 114
WAZIRPUR GURGAON
122505 HR IN

SERVICE

NILESH SHUKLA

DIRECTOR

08617637

H No. 19, AAUGAPUR,
UTTAR PRADESH,
AUGAPUR PRATAPGARH
230138 UP IN

SERVICE
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ANNEXURE C

Details of the existing share capital of the issuer Company in a tabular form, indicating therein with regard
to each allotment, the date of allotment, the number of shares allotted, the face value of the shares allotted,
the price and the form of consideration.

Date of Number of shares Face Value Form of Nature of allotment
allotment allotted (INR) Consideration
04.02.2020 10,000 10 Bank Transfer Subscription to
Memorandum
01.04.2020 80,000 10 Bank Transfer Right Issue

The number and price at which each of the allotments were made in the last one year preceding the date of
the private placement offer cum application letter separately indicating the allotments made for
considerations other than Cash and the details of the Consideration in each case: N.A.
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SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED IN THE 8™ MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED HELD ON MONDAY, 28" DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020, AT 11:00
AM. AT UNIT NO. 1901, 19TH FLOOR, TOWER B, WORLD TRADE TOWER, PLOT NO.C-1, SECTOR 16, NOIDA-
201301 {UP)

TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE THE OFFER FOR ISSUE OF UP TO FIFTY LAKH THIRTY-SEVEN THOUSAND TWO
HUMDRED OPTIONALLY COMWVERTIBLE DEBENTURES OF FACE WALUE OF INR 200 EACH, AGGREGATING UPTO
INR OMNE HUNDRED CRORE SEVENTY FOUR LAKH FORTY THOUSAND ONLY ON PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, 62(1)ic). 71 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Sscurities) Rules,
2014, the Companies {Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory amendments or re-
enactments thereof forthe time being in force], and the enabling provisions in the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company; and purswant to rules/ regulations/ guidelines, if any, prescribed by the
Reserve Bank of India or any other competent authority from Lime to time; and subject to necessary approvals
{ sanctions / permissions of appropriate statutory / regulatery authorities, if applicable, the consent of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to iszue 50,37,200 {Fifty Lakh Thirly Seven Thousand
Two Hundred) Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures [hereinafter collectively referred to as QCDs)
having face value of INR 200/- {Indian Rupees Two Hundred Only) each, in one or more tranches, at par for an
aggregate amount not excesding INR 100,74,40,000/- (Indian Rupees One Hundred Crore Seventy Four Lakh
Forty Thousand only) on private placement basis t© Cube Mobility Investments Ple. Ltd (existing Shareholder
ofthe Company and hereinafter referred to as ‘CMIPL/Subscriber’] and to issue such number of Equity Shares
as may be required to be issued upon conversion of the OCDs allotted pursuant to this resclution or as may
be necessary in accordance with the terms of the offering.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the OCDs shall be issued subject to following terms and conditions mentioned
herein below:

Terms Description
Face Value INR 200/- per QCD
Nature of instrument Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures, comvertible into Equity

Ehares Inthe manner provided in the Optionally Convertible Debenture
Subscription Agreement | Agresment™).

lssue Price IME 200, - per OLCD

Interest coupan The QOCDs to carry interest rate equivalent to 13% p.a. and shall be payable
quarterhy.

Tenure The QCDs shall be redezmable on or before 31 March 2050 and can be
converted into equity at the option of investor anytime during the tenure of
oCo.

Conversion The subscriber has a right to convert whole or any part or any number of

DCDs Into equity shares, at any time, Ul the redemption Date. Such
conversion shall be at the sole option of the Subscriber, by giving intimation,

Fagd. Office: 5% Raor, OGF Commendis] Bleck, Harel Aol Astel Mo 58, fer ooty Hospitality DBLRCL 1G] Airport, My Dedhi-1100357
Corporste Office: Linit Mo, 1901, 197" Fledr, Towear-B, World Trade Towear, Fiet Mo, ©-1, Sectar-16, Nolda-201301
Ernail:- Poofa. Agarwal @ cubehighways.com, Phone: +91-0120-4EG8307, CI-U53050L2019FLCISETAT



SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED

without any consent / prior approval from the Company. The conversion
terms to Bbe agreed based on fair value of aquity as an Bswe date of QCD.

Conversion Date The conversion date shall be the date on which the OCDs issued to the
Subscriber are comverted into Equity Shares, at the option of the Subscriber

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the draft Letter of Offer in Form PAS - 4 as prescribed under the Companies
{Prospectus and Allotment of securities) Rules, 2014 and record of private placement in Form PAS-5 containing
the terms and conditions be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, the Board be and is
heraby atthorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, In its absolute discretbon, deam
necessary, proper of desirable for such purpose, including but not limited to execution of various deeds,
documents, writings, agreements, and also to modify, accept and give effect to any modifications therein and
the terms and conditions of the issue, as may be required by the statutory, regulatory and other appropriate
authorities and to settle all gueries or doubts that may arise in the proposed issue, without being reguired to
seek any further consent or approval of the Members,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the atoresaid resolution, the Board be and is
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, desm
necessary, proper of deskrable for such purpose, including but not limited to execution of various deeds,
documents, writings, agreements, and also to modify, accept and give effect to any modifications therein and
the terms and conditions of the issue, as may be required by the statutory, regulatory and other appropriate
authorities and to settle all gueries or doubts that may arise in the proposed issue, without being required to
seek any further consent or approval of the Members,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to applicable laws, the Board be and is hereby also authorized to delegate,
all ar any of the powers herein conferred, to any Director(s) or Offlcar(s] of the Company and to revoke and
substitute such delegation Ffram time to time, as deemed it by the Board, to give effect 1o the afaresaid
resolution.”

For Salaipudhur-Madurai Tollway Limited

mum%:i

Milesh Shukla

Director

DIM; 0B51T63T

Address: H No. 19, Aaugapur, Pratapgarh
Littar Pradesh 230138

Date: October 03, 2020
Place: Noida

Regd, Difice: 5% Floor, OSE Commerciad Block, Hoted Alpft, Asset W, 50, Asrooity Hosphallty Destrict, 1G] Alrpor, Maew Delhe1 10037
Comporate Office: Uinit Mo, 1904, 15% Floor, Towsar-B, World Tradia Toweer, Plot Mo, C-1, Sector-16, Noida-201301
Ermail:- Pnaja.ﬂgar‘-tal@uuh-ﬂu‘ghm'rs.mm. Phone; 491-012-4EGE307, CIN-LA53090L200FLCISETST




SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE SPECIAL RESOLUTION PASSED IN THE EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
OF THE MEMBERS OF SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED HELD OM SATURDAY, 03°° DAY OF
OCTOBER, 2020, AT 09:45 A.M. AT 5TH FLOOR, O5SE COMMERCIAL BLOCK, HOTEL ALOFT, ASSET MO, 58,
AEROCITY HOSPITALITY DISTRICT, 1GI AIRPORT, NEW DELHI-110037

ISSUE OF UP TO AFTY LAKH THIRTY-SEVEN THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED OPTIONALLY CONVERTIBLE
HENTURES OF FACE VA DF_INR 200 EACH, AGGREGATING UPTO MR ONE HUNMDRED CROR

SEVEMTY FOUR LAKH FORTY THOUSAND ONLY ON PRIVATE PLACEMENT BASIS

“RESDLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, 62{1){c), 71 and other applicable provisions, If
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies [Prospactus and Allotment of Securities) Rules,
2014, the Companies {Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory amendments or
re-enactments thereof for the time being in force), and the enabling provisions in the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company; and pursuant to rules/ regulations/ guidelines, if any, prescribed by
the Reserve Bank of India or any other competent authority from time to time; and subject to necessary
approvals [/ sanctions [ permissions of appropriate statutory / regulatory authorities, if applicable, the
consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to issue 50,37,200 (Filty Lakh Thirty
Seven Thousand Two Hundred] Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures (hereinatter collectively
referred to as OCDs) having face value of INR 200/ - (indian Rupees Twe Hundred Only) each, in one or mare
tranches, at par for an aggregate amount not exceeding INR 100,74,40,000/- |Indian Rupees One Hundrad
Crore Seventy Four Lakh Forty Thousand only) on private placement basis to Cube Mobility Investments
Pra, Ltd (existing Shareholder of the Company and hereinafter referred to as ‘CMIPL/Subscriber’) and to
issue such number of Equity Shares as may be required to be issued upon conversion of the DCDs allotted
pursuant to this resolution or as may be necessary in accordance with the terms of the offering,

RESCLVED FURTHER THAT the OCDs shall be ssued subject to following terms and conditions mentioned
herein below:

Terms Description

Face Value INR 200/- per OCD

Nature of instrument | Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures, comvertible into Eguity Shares
in the manher provided |n the Dptionally Convertible Debenture Subseription
Agreement |'Agreement”).

Issue Price INR 200/- per OCD

Interest coupon The QCDs to carry interest rate equivalent to 13% p.a, and shall be payable
quartesy.

Tenure The OCDs shall be redeemable on or before 31 March 2050 and can be
converted Into equity at the option of investor anytime during the tenure af
OCD.

Regd. Office: 5" Floar, O5E Commancial Block, Hotel Aloft, Asset No, 58, Aerooity Hospitality District, 1G] Alrport, Mew Delhi-110037
Corporate Office: Unit Mo 15031, 19 Floar, Tower-B, Workd Trade Tower, Plot Ko, -1, Sectos-16, Nalda-201301
Email:- Posa. Agarwal@ cube b ghways. corn, Phone: +91-01 334868307, CEN-U453000L201FLCISETAT



SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED

Conwersion The subscriber has a right to convert whaole ar any part or any number of
OCDs into equity shares, at any time, till the redemption Date. Such
conversion shall be - at the sole option of the Subscriber, by giving intimation,
without any consent [ prier approval from the Company, The conversion
terms to be agreed based on falr value of equity as on Issue date of OCD.

Conversion Date The conversion date shall be the date an which the 0CDs issued to the
Subscriber are converted into Equity Shares, at the option of the Subscriber

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, the Board be and is
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem
nmecessary, proper or desirable for such purpose, including but not limited to execution of various deeds,
documents, writings, agreements, and also to modify, accept and give effect to any modifications therein
and the terms and conditions of the issue, as may be required by the statutory, regulstory and other
appropriate authorities and to settle all gueries or doubts that may arise in the proposed [ssue, without

being required to sesk any further consent or approval of the Members.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to zpplicable laws, the Board be and i hereby alse authorized to
delegate, all or any of the powers herein conferred, to any Director(s] or Officer|s) of the Company and to
revoke and substitute such delegation fram time to time, as deemed fit by the Board, to give effect to the
aforesaid resobution.”

Certified True Copy
For Salaipudhur-Madural Tellway Limited

Nilesh Dumiysimed

Date: 2020.10.03
5 h u kia 123342 +05'30°
Milesh Shukla
Director
DiN: 0BB1T637
Address: H No. 19, Aaugapur, Pratapgarh
Uttar Pradesh 230138

Place: Maida
Date: October 03, 20000

Fegd. Office: 51 Flear, OSE Commareial Block, Housl Alofl, Assst Mo, 58, Aerocity Hoapitaliny Distrct, 161 Airpary, New Delhi-110087
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SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT(S) AS REQUIRED UMDER SECTION 102{1) OF THE COMPAMNIES ACT, 2013 FOR
SPECIAL BUSINESS SET OUT IN THE NOTICE

ITEM NO. 1

APPROVAL OF OFFER FOR IS5UE OF UP TO FIFTY LAKH THIRTY-SEVEN THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED
OPTIONALLY CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES OF FACE VALUE OF INR 200 EACH, AGGREGATING UPTD INR
OME HUMDRED CRORE SEVENTY FOUR LAKH FORTY THOUSAMND OMLY ON PRIVATE

In order to fulfil its financial abligations under the Concession Agreement with respect to operation and
miaintenance of Madural te Kanvakumari section of NH 7 from KR 116+500 to KM 130+000 Project
Highway along with the Project Assets, in the State of Tamilnadu on toll, operate & transfer {TOT) basis
and in order to augment the financal requirements for general operations of the Company, it is proposed
to raise funds by the way of issuance of Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures.

in accordance with the provisions of Sections 42, 62[1)ic), 71 and all other applicable provisions, il any, of
the Companses Act, 2013 read with the Bules framed thereunder, in case of an offer or invitation to
subscribe for Opticnally-Convertible Debentures (OCDs) on private placement basis, the Company needs
to obtain prior approval of its shareholders by means of a special resalutien,

The Company proposes to issue 50,37,200 (Fifty Lakh Thirty Seven Thousand Two Hundred) Unsecured
Opticnally Convertible Debentures [hereinafter collectively referred ta as OCDs) having face value of INA
200/~ (indian Rupees Two Hundred Only) each, for an aggregate amount not exceeding INR INR

100,74,40,000/- {Indian Rupees One Hundred Crore Seventy Four Lakh Forty Thousand onlfy) by way of
private placement as per the terms and conditions mutuzlly decided between the Subscriber and the

Company.

In terms of Rule 13 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 read with Rule 14 of the
Companies | Prospectus and Allotment of Secunties) Rules, 2014, brief terms of the proposed offer are set
out below in this Explanatory Statement.

The Objects of the Issue

In order to fulfil its financial obligaticns under the Concession Agreement with respect to operation and
maintenance of Madural to Kanyakumari section of NH 7 from KM 1164500 to KM 130+000 Prosect
Highway along with the Project Assets, in the State of Tamilnadu on toll, operate & transfer (TOT) basis
and in order to augment the financial requirements for general operations of the Company, It &
proposed to raise funds by the way of issuance of Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures.

Terms of lasue

Terrms Description

Face Value INR 200/ per OCD

Mature of instrument Unsecured Oplionally Convertible Debentures, convertible into Equily Shares
i the manner provided in the Optionally Convertible Debenture

Regd. Office: 5" Floar, O5E Commancial Block, Hotel Aloft, Asset No, 58, Aerooity Hospitality District, 1G] Alrport, Mew Delhi-110037
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SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED

Subscription Agreement ["Agreement™].

Issue Price INR 200/ per OCD

Interest coupon The OCDs to carry inberest rate equivalent to 13% p.a. and shall be payvable
quarterly.

Tenure The OCDs shall be redeemable on or before 31 March 2050 and can be
converted inte equity at the option of investor anytime during the tenure of
oco.

Conversion The subscriber has & right to convert whale or any part or any number of

OCDs into equity shares, at any tirme, till the redemption Date. Such
comversion shall be at the sole option of the Subscriber, by giving intimation,
without any consent / prior appraval from the Company, The conversion
terms to be agreed based on fair value of equity as on issue date of OCD,

Conversion Date The conwersion date shall be the date on which the OCDs issued to the
subscribeer are converted into Equity Shares, atthe option of the Subscriber

{ili} Terms of Comversion
The OCDs shall be optionally convertible into equity shares of the Company at a ratio of 1:1
{iv) The total number of securities to be issued

50,37.200 [Fifty Lakh Thirty-Seven Thousand Two Hundred) Unsecured Optionally Convertible
Debentures

(v}  The price or price band at/within which the allotment is proposed
INR 200/~ each (Indian Rupees Two Hundred anly) at par
{vi) Basis on which the price has been arrived at along with report of the registered valuer

The price has been amived on the basis of Valuation Report issued by Mr. Sumit Dhadda (Registered
Valuer) having office at B-11, F Mo, 202, Mot Ashirwad Bldg., Dhruy farg, Tilak Nagar, Jaipur. The
Yaluation Report Is enclosed with this Notice as Annexure A.

(vil] Relevant date with reference to which the price has been arrived at
May 15, 2020
f{vill} The class or classes of persons to whom the allotment |s proposed to be made

The alletment of OCDs is proposed to be made to the Promoter of the Company, i.e., Cube Mobility
Imvestments Ple. Lid.

Regd. Office: 5" Floar, O5E Commancial Block, Hotel Aloft, Asset No, 58, Aerooity Hospitality District, 1G] Alrport, Mew Delhi-110037
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SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED

{ix} Intention of promoters, directors or key managerial personnel to subscribe to the offer

As mentioned in [viii) above, Cube Mobility Investments Pte. Lid., the Promoter of the Company, is

directly interested in subscribing to the Offer.

(&) The pre issue and post issue shareholding pattern of the Company

Sr. Mo,

Category

Pri-lssue

Post-lssue

MNo. of Shares
{on a fully
diluted basis}

% of
Shareholding
(on a fully
diluted basis)

Mo, of Shares
held
lon a fully
diluted basis)

% of Shareholding
[on a fully diluted
basis)

Fromoters”
Holding:

Indian:

Individual

Body
Corporate

Sub Total
Fnreiun
Promaoters

69,994

100%

89,994

100%

Sub Total (A)

90,000

1008

90,000

100%

Man-
Promoters’
halding:

Institutional
Inwestors

Mon-
Institution

Private

Corporate
Bodies

Directors and
Relatives

Indian Public
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SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED

&r. Mo, Category Pre-lssue Post-lssue
No. of Shares % of ho. of Shares % of Shareholding
{on a fully Sharehaolding held (on a fully diluted
diluted basis} [on a fully fon a fully basis)
diluted basis) diluted basis)
| Others
(Including
Mon-Resident
Indians
| (MRIs))
I Sub Tatal (B)
| GrendTotal | %0000 | 100% | 90000 | 100%

(%) The proposed time within which the allotment shall be completed

Im terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, the allotment shall be completed within a period
of 12 months from the date of issue of this Offer Letter,

(xii} The names of the proposed allottees and the percentage of post preferential offer capital that may
be held by them

Proposed Allottee: Cube Mobility Investments Pre. Ltd.

Percentage of post preferential offer capital; 1008

{xiii} The change in control, i any. in the company that would occur consequent to the preferential

offer

Mo ehange in control would eccur consequent to the preposed preferential offer,

{xiv]The number of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis have already been made during
the year, in terms of number of securities as well as price

Ma. of Rame of Date of Securities Number and Total
Allotment Allottee Allotment allotted Price of Consideration
Securities [ir INR)
allotted
1 Cube Mobility 29-05-2020 Optionally 0,000 OCDs 1,20,00,000
Imvestments Convertible of INR 200/-
Pte. Ltd. Dehentures each
|0CDs)
2 Cube Mobility | 28-09-2020 Optionally 70,000 0CDs | 1,40,00,000
Imvestments Convertible of INR 200/-
Pte. Ltd. Debentures cach

Regd. Office: 5" Floar, O5E Commancial Block, Hotel Aloft, Asset No, 58, Aerooity Hospitality District, 1G] Alrport, Mew Delhi-110037
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SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED

| | | [ jocos) | |

() The justification for the allotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash together
with valuation report of the registered valuer

Not Applicable

The Board of Directors of the Campany believe that the proposed private placement is in the best interest
of the Company and its Members, Your Dérectars, therefore, recommend this resolution o be passed as a
Special Resolution by the Members,

None of the Direttors of the Company, or their relatives, are in any way, concemed or interesied,
financially or otherwise, in the said resolution,

N E Ies Digitally signed

by Nilesh Shukla

Shukla 25 s

Fepd. Office: 50 Fear, OSE Cormmsencial Block, Hotel alal, Asser No. 5B, serociny Hoedpitaliny DErsc, 161 Alrporr, Mew Delha-110057
Corporate Office: Linit Mo, 1501, 19 Flgar, Tower-B, Workd Trade Towes, Plot Mo, C-1, Sector-16, Naida- 201301
Email:- Poofa. Agarwal@ cube b ghvasys. corm, Phone: +#91-01 304868307, CIN-U453090L 20 19FLOISETAT



g S

Valiztien Rapon of &oihasdhir ocal ooy L Imitog

YALUATION REPORT FOS

Cata of valkation: My 15, 2020
Cate of Vakation Report: Jure B, 2020

Frepared by:
Registered Valuer:Sumit Dhadda

Registration Number with IBBI: |9BI/AV/06/2018/10160

Registration Number with CAIRVO-ICA| RvO/06/RYV-POOD0A1/2018-19

fetegis bemvad Wialiver Pty Frivari; & Confiteaiial Poge- 1 -




Wi Repon of Safmey i o o iftniiy L

Table of Contents

Chapoer 1; Backgrowst 3 -

I Ty e T T T T .

1.2 Background of SMTL.. ...t i o mb e 18 mmmmmmt 18§ et b mmme 1 1 be 1828 bt

13 Appointvent date, valuation date & repart date ... e e 4

B I T Tt T T RRNY - |

Chapter &; Scope of Work & Limhation : 5

eOpEOFWIOMK | . e e s e s e rres ae 5
SO0 Linr A0S e, . e s 5
Chapter 3: Informaton Sources : ?
Chapter 4; Seleciion of Valuation Methodalogy 8
Discounted Fres Cash Flow Method [DCF).. ... SR .
Comparable Company dMultiples Method (CCM) ., B et s 10 9
Met Asset Value Method (MAY) . ...oerr - - b et 1m0 1 eeee 118 1 ]
Chapter 5: Valustion of Equity Shares of SMTL 10
Stp A bdgntifying the fair value of equity shars a4 on May 15, 7030 . e 10

Yakuatson of SATLAS Per Ineoumis Appraieh lDCF] e rrrimaminan cmememmeee s smeemememe et nns 1A

ﬂ:laptﬂ &: Fair valuation od OC0s and establishing the conversion ratie of the QCDs into Equity Shares 12
Step B: Derermining the Forness of the Ksue pnce of the QDS 1

Disd airmer 11

Fl
Aagisoere Mo her fapar; Brivare & Cprobeni Aol ;"..3"" Sl 'E'. Pege 2
o -ﬂ_"l'i
": Nﬁgﬂn 1!
L




“Valuation Rt o Sl ot Mader ol Toia LiTHtee

rrw e o= mmn wm

1.7

Chapter 1; Background
11 Purpgsg ofVsluatige Exqeclse

Sumit Dhadda [*1*) hau:hem engaged by the Board ofsalaipudbur-Madura Tollway Limited [“58MTL) ta

issue the ﬁmm Repoct [Tthe repor| for dereormonabon of fairness of the iscue pree of OLUS and
enuity shares 1o be Esved by SMTL a5 on May 15, 2000,

Based on the issuance price of OCDs 20 determined and the fair walue of Equily shares of SMTL, this
reprort shiall ssa astablish tee convarsion rablo of e CCDs o b2 issued, .
Ay per gection 24T of Companies Act 2013, Valvation Report hps be issued, which Providas sLatutory
backing to the Yaluation. In acordance with sechion 247 of the Companies Bet 20013 valuabkion af any
Property, stocks, shares, cebencunes, securities or 2000will or any other assats (herein rafrred bo G thi
asfets) of met warth of 3 company o ks abllite: under the prowsioen of this Act, shoukd be valued by 3
person having such quakfication and expenence and registenzd 35 vahoer in Sach manner a5 may ba
prescribad,

Bckgroynd oF SMTL

Salaippdbur Madursi Tollway Lieuted (SMTLIG an gnlistad public company. i was incorporated on
130acernber 2015 and is locatad inDalhi It i3 dassifed as a public sshsidiary of & foreign campany. The
company has theee directors = 0im Prakach, Bown Kurmar, and NReshShukla, The registered office of the
company is at Sth Foor, O5€ Commercial Block, Hotsl Alglt, Assel Mo.5SE, Aerachty, Gl Airpory, Delhi,

s Corparale Identification Mumber is LU453090L2019FLC3I58747. The Cormpamy's paid up capital a5 on
kay 15, 2020 is WA Five lakhs,

The Company is in business of managng and operating Wl roads in India hder the Buld Operate
Transfer (BOT] scheme,

The Company is 100% subsidiary of Tube Mobility vesbrments Phe. Lkd. wehich is 3 Sin g peore- b
corripany bvesting in rosd and highwsy proiects, along with other select infrastroctre sectors 0 indka,
They are having 28 running projects s indka.

Pinglzterml Lo Lo Rispaert Frovore & Confdeamod
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13 intment da Iuvatign
Az per Sectlon 247 of the Companies Act, 2013 in absenge of the fudit Committee, ihe Bgard of Directors
af Emuppuintudiurnit Dhadda (Regiztered Valuer] for waluation of Equity Shares& Opdonally
Convertible Debentures on 25 May 2020, The anaiyeis of the Fsir value of the Equity Share BOptonally
Comvertible Debentures of the Company has bean carrsed out as on May 15, 2020 1.e. the Valuauon date.
The waluation report ks sued an June B, 2020,

iy klanklty of Walwar
Sumdt Dhadda is a Pegistered Valuer a reguired onder The Companies {Registered WaluersE Valuation)

Aubss, 2017 Surnit Dhadda & registered with Irsolvency & Bankruptey Board of India vida ragistratson
namber |BEYRYS0E ZC1EF101ED, Sumil's primary membershop is regisbered wilk ICA| Ragrstered Valuers
Cwgarvedtion vide ne, KAIRVO/DE RY-FOCD041/2018- 1%

. Drisclosure o Vakper Intermst

+ 1 have no present or prospective contemydated fnancial ielerest in SMTLRor any persond interest with
razgect 10 the Pramoters & Board of Dwrectors of SMTL | have no bius_,l"preiudin:e with raspet 1o any matter
that i the subjact &f the valuation repart or 1o the parties imvolved with this sngagement, .

» My arofesshonal fees for Ihis valualion is based upan my normal hilling rares, and not cantingsnt upon the
FESUIEs Or the wabue OF T Dusne S5 Orin any othar manner.
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Lhapter 2; Scope of Work & Limitation

Scope of Work

I hawe beesrr e agad by the Board of SMTL bo issoe the Yaluation Repart ("the report™] Tor determnation af
fairnass of the issuk prick of OCCEarkd squity shares to ba issued by SMTL a5 on May L3, 2020 )
Our report on recomersndation of fair valee of QCO & squity shares i5 0 aooondacoe with indian Yaluatan
Staredards, 2008 issued by the Institobe of Chartered Accountants of India and in line with inkarnationg
valuallon methadobogies.

| have been engaged by the 584TL to lssue the Valuation Report {“the regant™) for racommending the fair
valuation of OCOr & Equity sharks of the company &¢ per the intemationally accepted vahsalion prindiples
and KAl Valuation Standard-102, Valuation Bases, as on May LG, 2020

All e berms usad under this report shall hawve the same meaning ax Asslgned to them under AL Valuation
Standard = 1032, Dafiritions. .

Ww undierstarsd that thie purpass of ths riport it for determinatlon offarness of e issue price of OCDs
be issuad by SKTL and alss ta fix the conversion raba baday.

Baged on e fair valua of DCDs 20 determined and the Fak valus of Equidy shares of SMTLas determined by
an independent valuer, thes report shall also establish the comersion ratio of the OC0: to ba issued.

The yalue is to be determined with reference to the valvation date, wheeh s ay 15, 20249,

For the aforassd purpose, the scope of our senvice is 10 conduet relative {and not absolute} valuatson of
agquily shares of the company shd recammending It in accordance with gererally scoaplad professionad

skwndandds.

Scope Limitatkans

5

Valuadon analyus and result are spedfic to fiwe purpose ol valuabon and ae based on the finandal
inflormation provided o o, 1t may rol be valid for any other purpose o a5 ak sy other dake.

Waluativn analysis ang resedt are spechic to tha data of this report. A valuathon of this nature invahves
considarstion of various factors induding thots wpacted by prevailing markced rehds in gensral and industry
trends in particular, &s such, valualion results are, 10 2 signihcant extent, subject ho ntinuancs ol ourrent
trends beyond the date of the report. We, howover, have no oblipation 10 update \his report Tor events,
trends of ransactions redating to the company or the marketfacohomy in general and Doourriag sn.tsbqﬁ&nt

Loy theis clvie Of this FapoOrT,

A
T ﬁ{lﬂl&l'\.
Jl__f 'I,L":'.'I- !:’{.'*J'..I
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¥ii,

wii,

we have relied upon the information furmshed by the management of the Company and other spurces
belisved ko be relisbie and Iroe. '

We expreis no opirdon on the achievability of the forecasts given to ut The ad:emption ied in their
preparation, a5 we hanes bean sxplained, are based on thee managerment’s pratent sxpectation of both — the
mpsl Dkaly et of futlre usingss svents s Circumstances and the managemant’s course of action rlated
Lo them, It s usuglly the case that some events and circumstances do Ot ocour as enpected or are not
arficpaied. Therafare, sctoal reaulis dring the farsest period mey difler frorn the forecadt and tich

differences may be mﬁteriai.

I the course of the vatuation, vr& were provided with both written end verbal infarmation, inchading marker,
technical, hinanckal and operating data Wae have however, not camied cuk a dus diligence o sudit ol the
company (o the purpose of this engagmoent, o hiee we independently investipated o olherwise verifisd
the dats provided.

Further, we hbpwe made vanpus assoemphtions n relablon o valuabiondafShATL. Wa have mada such

assumphions, in deoussions with the management

I anzy bee reoted that valuathon is & haghly subjective exercise and may dilfer from valier to valuer dependicg
an the individual percaplion of the aitendant clreumstpncrs. At best, it = an expresskon of opinion or a

recommMndation balad On certan aszumptions,

Considering the vresrtainty due to COVID-19 impacl, Management has factored the same ared a0 their
opinian, il will ba normalized (0 ong ran. The Managament has considered its impact i Cash Hows wirdrsgr
required and | beNeve that such impact is plasible,

feprrie e Wk Fogpnart Friwre & Canfidenml
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Chapter 3: Information Souwrces

For the purpose of this repert, the documenis andfor infermabon publishad ar provided by managarment hawve
biears redied upon. ! have fully relled oo the informakgn prowided by the company, | 3ke do ok vouch for the
acewracy of the information ag is provided to us by the managemant of SKMTL.

We have relizd upon the following informatlon:
1. Progections prepaned by Manapement upto 31 March 2051
i, Terms & Conditsons of Progosed issoe of OCO
ii. Information avallable in public doman ie. MCA poreal, Money Control ste,
(w1 have alsp relied upan wntten and verbal explanalions and information given 10 us by the managernent of

th# Compary during the course of owr @xancise

[rhis space hos been Ieft blank intenBonoly)
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l".':;-apter 4: Selaction of Valuation Methodology

Thers o5 00 angle dofinition of the barm Value' that is suitable Tor all purposes or at all timas. The value of 2
partcular asset may vary aecording (o Jifferent valuathon methodokagies 1hat are adapted $0 escertan the value
for a spedificpurppse, Valwation of secuniles 2 a0 nexact science, [t may somethmes invalve 3 st of judgments

and assumphons that may be subyjsct b certam uncmrkamties.

In tha preseant case, the ghjective of the valuation axepcise is 10 determing P faimess al tha issue price of Egubly
shares angd OCOS Lo b isiued by SMTL Based on 1he (air value of Equity shares and issuance price of DCOS 5o
determined, thes mport shalk akeo estbiish 1he corwersion ratio of the OUDS to be issued,

The #stablished mathods of valuation and 3 brief desoeiption of each methed is pravided below «

Metheds of Valuotian

fnere are several commondy wsed and. actepted methods for determining the volue of businessfshares of the
company, which wauld be applied 10 the present case |, 1o the extent relevenl and applicabde, sudh as:

= Mgl Asset volug Or Break up valug baced on tha valug of the 3s58ts and liabilites (NAY),
«  Walue baged on the Dhacowntad cash Mow (DCFY method, '

»  Value based on Market multiples of Comparabie listed companies{ECMIL

i nitag Free © Iny higd [CCF
Urder the DCF method, intrinsec valuez of an asset is epavalent 10 the present value of it sxpected futone cash
Mows. Common equity can be valued directly by using Free Cash Flow 1o Eouity (“FCFE™) oF indlrectly by using a
Free Cash Flow to Firm ("' made! vo eshm.al:e the value of the firm e, Entarprizs Yalus and dhe subie SCting

thie walue of oo — comemon - stock capital jusvally debt) from FCRF o aarive gt an estimate of tha value of aguity.

FCFF is the cash flow svailabie v the company’s supplieds of capical after atl operanng expensies (incuding 12xes|
hava heen paid and necessary investmends. in working capital le.g , reimtary) and lized capetal e g, equipment)
hawe been misde.

In the BCF approach to valuation, using F{'l;F muethpd, the valpa of a business is datermined based on foture
expected free cash Aowrs discounted at & sate 1. weighted average cost of capatal [PWACC") that reflects Le sk
irwalwed in the business and the cash Nows, The valus 20 det@miingd reprasents the firm value or the enlerphze
valua Valug abtaingd by wsing DCF method gives us the Enterpwise Valor, The came is adjusted for Non-operating
avsets, cash, debtand loans, a3 on the vakation date in order to arrlve at the equity valuation

ftegictrred Aoluer Teport Orvarc § Cefmoni
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Comparpbls Comganmy MUkl Wkl od Mol

Under the COM Method, the valuaion of the assed is based on muliplas of comparable asse1s — that |s, valuathon
bosed on multiples benchmarked o e mukiples of similar dssets, To maks this cornparizan, we begin by
|dentlfving 3 valuation multipls {hke anterpnce valus bo saes mulbple, Enterprics value bo samings mulbiple). This
valgoon mulople is applied to the camngs f -5-uliu Iigurs of the commpany being valusd Lo Arrive at the valuation
of thé COMmpany. .

E
However the Folliinwing pragiical difficuldes may be faced in employing the CCM approach:

*  ho or very few suffidenty compaable companles .
* Mo or very few listed frecent transadbons history in sufficiently comparable companies

*  Lack of availability of the credible data sbout recent transaction i sulficiendy com parable compoaries

Oue to He aforesadid lmitatbons, COM method shoukd be used only where sufficient comparable companies
ransativng are avedable.

et Assat Wakle et hodd (s Y]

Thes Mt Attel Valus wiethad aferiprs b aneasore the value aF the st avests al the company sgainst each share.
It is computed by raking the net »alus of the company's assets, subtracting from them the ampunt of labilities
and preferrad shareholders clams, and dividing the remndar amongst the number of equlty shares. For an
et Sonp ey valvation, HAY valudtion, baucd an the gt backing it penerally piven morg impartance.
Net Accar Vahue Method is 2130 cansiderad appropfiate, whers the Riture cash flows £ commercial operations of
e walued company canmol be reasanably soertained, As the Company i inhe Rghways CONstruchions wheng
the ravenue risdalfproject o Based on future prajections only tatlors, 1hast not consdered this method.

Preferred Approach

as indicated aboue, since WAL Valuation Standards suggests afore<aid variows valuation methodologies, therefore
in the rgbant Gase, | hawe adopted DCF method 1o the porposes of valuah'm_nl shares, congslering of 10 be the

. it ratigmale method.

fecardingly our approath plan, Far the purposss of achieving the sbjectives the valuabon raport is 33 [ollows:

Sep A Kentilying the faer value of equity shares as on hay 13, 2020;

Step B: Determination ol Fairess of the istus price of OO0 Basad o the Jalr value of Equity shares and
lssuance price of OCDs so determined, ¢swablishing the cormversion rabie of the OCDs

b120; .
s
o
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Valuation ™ SMTiasPerincomn Approach {DOF)

For the dabarrmination of Fair Valee of egquity 25 on May 15, 2020, we have ealied on the nformaation submibted
by The rnanggament ofGhTL.

Basad on the financial projections, as provided toous, | have anrived &t the free cash Gaws to equity of SMTL The
tree Gash Howr bo be wsed tor the purpose ol the model hids been arrived at basad on the finanoal projections (as
provided by the management] for mext 30 yearsiromiay 15,2020 (o March31, 2051, The valus of SMTLhE3 been
calrulatad as on May LS, 2020. The managament has made these propecthons by considaring the Impact of it
Furyre expansicn plans, .and Mseeahle_ changes in it future ¢xpangion plans, while making the fnardial

progecteong ardd other sullable assurmrption.

Virfuihirion Andlptis

-

An impertant slement of vabsston using OCF i5 the selection of discpunt rate that reflects the expected ot of
recurn {adjusied For ricks accociated wdth the bwestrment) o prospective wwecIors i Sl e mant
opportunities, Thi Cost of Equity, whi:ﬁ reflects 1he opportunity cost to shareholdars of company i3 used a5 the '

best indicator of the relevant dsciunt rake.,
The caleclortion of cost of cguity has been ehscioiated in ﬂrcmcdhgﬂﬁm.

Daterrimiaiion of Lot of iy

The cost of equity has been detenmined by osing the Capital Acsat Pricing modal {“CAPRW™).

Cost of Equity m Ri+ [Ay = 8)" B+ SCRP

R L Risk Free rate of retum

;1 : Return on diversiliad market portialio

R Ry : Marker risk premivm

I : . Systurnatic risk Factor asancksted with the ndustry e, Bata,
SCRP : Corr pany SPecific Risk Prgmiom

Accardingly, in this case the cost of équity has been arrived aras under:

Lot of Equilry = R+ |F.-FRJ* R

Retgistara? Voabosr Ranae Prhwate & Conficpaik
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Wirtraliin R of S U ot -Mader sl T odwey Limmsd

Ceterminmtion of Rick Free Bote ond ivorke! Risk Premaam

R has basn laken 3t 6.0 beirg YTM on long-term risk free cendral government secunes basad on yield of
India 10-Yeur Goverrament Bond a5 on date of waluation, Bagls the above, R, - bdacket risk premlum} hay been
cakcwlated al & 3% for the congpany.

D termindiion of Béto

Bets is @ measure of volatllity, or systematlc rish of the return on & parbgular security W the reburn on
marketporiilic.] have cosidered the Bews of 0.590r SWTLDAwS on the pubdic dana available oo Professor
AswathDarnodaran wehsive and after considering market adjustments.

Accordhingly, Cost of Equiity hat bean computed a5 Tollowrs;

Cast (Ke]
Equity | o 2.78%
Company Specihic site premium 15%
Company Specific Liquidity premium 1.5%
Ke fior Waluation 1L.78%
Cast of Capial for FCFE {roumded off to 13%6) 1%

Cost of Equrry has been considered after adding company specii size and kquidily premasn of 1.5% #ach on 8
resacnahle basis shnee the Company ks recantly mearporated company and also the cost of OCD ane comitg 25
13%. The OCOs wal be subscribed by promoiers and without thelr contribution project will not be viable.
Tharetore,Cost of equacy for SITLE cons(dered 24 13°%

Determination of Value o Pergetulty

The perpetuity viloe s the value of the business beyond the exphot forecast pariod and is the vale of the
maidtanable annual cash flow divided by the K& less prowith factor, The perpetuity value is then giscounted to
the present value. In this modal, no perpetuity is onsidersd becaue the propect 15 for a limited peried and afver
the spegified peripd, no cash flows will accroe to the mede, -

I hzwve formed an apinion on the value of equity shares of SMTL, based on the infarmation prowded by the
managemant of SMTLand rationale menvipned in the precxding paragraph. 1am of Ihe opinlon thal as on May 15,
2020, based on the free cash Miows to the equity the fair value of one squity of SMTL- Inda is INK 200 [Rupees
Two Hurkdred anly). The valies 4o arrived ob are subjoct to B mathers anumrnrsted in Tiscdlarer staement,

“Scopa-of Work & Umitation” snd information prnmrl:le-l:l b0 s ared shauld be viewsd in the gt thersof.
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Chapter 6: Fair Yaluation of OCDs and astablishing the conversion ratio of the OCDs
into Eguity Shares

Step B: Datermining the fakness of the lsoe prics of the S0

l4 the present cgge, MATLhas propoted Do isfus and alloy unsecwed Dpionadly Corvertible Debenturas o ©
identified irweastors bagod o the followhng berms and conditions:

F-:E "th IHRW- H'Em

Hature of Unserured Optborodhy Conwvertible Debentures, comeartibbe inte Eoulry Shares o the manner
instrument g indibend irh e O benclty Conwertidsla Cebentire Subaccption Agreament |'Agreement’)
Issr Price INR w_ [t OO

Indereat coupan  The OCD3 b carry interest rate squivalent to 13% p.a, and shall be payabbe quarterly.

T
The QLD shall be redesmable on or before 31 Mench 2060 and can be conve rted Into eguity ak

T
i the option of investor anptine duing the t=nura of OCD.
1 . .
The subsar|ber has & nHight 1o comert whole oF any part oF any amber of OCDY kg equety
Comumrsion ananes, AF a0y bimwe, LN the regampbion Dabe, Such conwi e Shall Be a0 that soke apithon of e
Cubrrila, Iy ghviog inlEmanion, wthoul any consent f prior approsal Ko the Congrarny, The
CONYETT tarms b be apraed baasd on Fair waloe of equity i an Bxoe dace of OB
Canvesian Date The conwershan dale shall be the dale on whach ths DU meusd (o ths Subariser are convelied

it EqQuity Shaeras, at the opflon aof the Satscnber

The OCD: arg propoted o be converted (Nidly/partialid inbo sguity shares of SMTLaS per the rerms of lscue. We
urderstand that the OCDs proposed to be issued by SMTLshell be converted into equily shares of SWTLaS per the
Covnwarsicdy rabio determdned geder this report. In the evend of such conversion e OO0 holders shall be losed
and allptted such number of equity shares in SMTLaS determuned whder this repart and the OCD agreement,

The termg of the issuande of the OCD provide that each OCD shall be considered as a debt uatl (oaverted into
ety This ezsentially means that unkl effectlwe date af canversion, dhe OED holder |of Face walus of IR MY
has provided 2 debt to the Company for INR 200 and such debt shell be tonverted into equity shares of the
cornpany at & later date, Further, an the dite of conversign, the DCD haddeér thall rédaive squity shares in the
company, having regard W the fair valwe of such equity shares as referred toin this repit a3 on Valuadon date
i & Moy 15, 2020 ‘

Roerbar ! Wnldor fepoet Privede & Confatmntol




Vadrmliin Frepon of Salsipecenr lpgr m T oiway [miaal
The fnrerest is poyolie of 13% which {5 considerad the rost of sebt ond wikich Is okso conoidered 05 The fwetons

eipettation 6f relurn on moame, As ob the valuodion dae, the gpliion & at e money a5 the underlping assel 1.e.
equity shore i3 hoving foir value of INE 200 which &5 equivadeal [0 iive poice of prc-}.nc-std' OCf. Therefore the foir
vaiee of OGO can b consideread os INR XK.

Latablizhing ihe vonyerssn ratie of the 0CD; into equity shargs
The corwersian ratia of the OC0s shall b determirgd having regacd to the Far viluation of the Equity Shares as
ort the Valuation Date,
As chsrussed marler in the repart, far valus of e squity shares of SMTLas on valation date determined by the
registerad valyer i INR 200,00 pad Egquirty share a2 om May 15, 2000, The ssuance prce of the OC0s 1o be issuad
by SMTLis datermiried + be INR 200 per OCD-
Tha Farmuda for determinatign oF Conwersion ratio s a5 lollows:
Cotwartion Ratio a Fair Value of OCDx f Far Walua of Equity Share
= 2000200
=1
_ Apph',ling tonwersion retko as above, 1 squity shara shall be i-mu-rd for JOLD upoh comrerSion or the samre can
be enpressad a5 100 #quty thares for svery 100-00Ds,
Accordingly, te conversion rtio far the proposed issuanoe of OCDS shall be a8 under:

Partlculars . Mumbaer of DCD's Mo, of Equity Shares in SMTL
L 1 i 1 ;
. . e mm o hmm = e e - . . P - [ — . 1
Canwarsion Ratks for OCDs _ ‘v I
100 - 100 '
Condusion

Based on the workings in abeernentioned paragraphs, the Fair value of Optisnally convertible Dehenturas are
consicered > INR X0/ to be psusd at 13% intersst. The OCDs can be converted inbo squily shams at anmypoint
during the issue pericd ak the option of holder of QCIw. Based on fair value of eiuily shares &5 of waluaton date,
taeh OOD will b convertad o one equity share accordingly the conversion ratio s 1.1,

The values o amived at are subject to the matters enumeratad in ‘Dizdaimer skarement’ referred. below, 'Scope

of Whark & Limison’ and inbormation prowided r us and should be wewed in the light thereot.
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Yol sk Report of SalnipudeMadurar T asry Limved

Disclaimer

This Yaluaton Htpq:ur.t [“the report”| /s Beirg furrshed for de:trr:rinatinn of the Fair walue of equity shares and
OC0s of Salalpudher - Madural Tolhway Limited {"SKTL™) . on 3 going conoeen baziz. Ve understand that the
p;.:rpuse of the said report o to determing the Tair value of OCD & Equity shares of SMTL, 35 onMay 15, 2010, The
value of SN'ITIJ:S to be determined with reference (o valuaton as on by 15, 2030, We hivg not congoerad the
impact of any changes on the business [ economec anvirpnmsend of Ihe company o genersl ndustry |1:m$t the
valuatinn date. ‘

The repart has been prepared by Begislered valuerSumit Dhadda from [aformation extracted From desk research,
publlished reports and other deta supplied by the management of the mpany and other siurces beligved W be
riliable and woe Qur scope of work does ot inclede verification of data submitbed by management and has
baen rekisd upan by us, The mepark may nat ba distributed, published, reproduced of used, without tha pHor
S ss wrilLen consent af Samit Ohadda, for any purpose other than the chjectives of this riparl,

T [actusl data, business detaik and financia statements have bewn pronided bre the management of IMTL,
which has baan relled upnn by me, without verifying the accuracy thereol. While l:l'm_i-nl'urmati_un provided herein
is helioved 1o bt Woe ardd relialle W the best of our knowledge, we do not make any represenistions or
warrankis, Express or imphed, a5 to the aruracy c'” toariplalanads of such informanon The report hiphlights the
altarnative approaches 1o valuabion, idealifies variowe (actars affeciing the valuation, summadizes the

methadslogy kesping in vitss the drcumatarces of the company and arrives ak e waloe of the company.

j o Guaddn
Kegtetared ValuerSumir Ohadda :
Registration Mumber with IBBL: 1881 /RV/06/2018/1D160
Regitration Mumber with ICARYOICAIRYD/OESAY-PO0004 1/ 2012-19
VDIN:2(H02703AARARVYIES L

Dake: Jums §, 2020
MR Joipur
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SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED

CIN: U45309DL2019FLC358747

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

. As at
Particulars Notes March 31,2020
ASSETS
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 3 8.82
(b) Other Current assets 4 53.54
Total current assets 62.36
Total assets 62.36
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(@) Equity share capital 5 1.00
(b) Other equity 6 (12.00)
Total equity (11.00)
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
-total outstanding -dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 7 11.59
and small enterprises
(i) Other financial liabilities 8 61.43
(b) Other current liabilities 9 0.35
Total current liabilities 73.36
Total equity and liabilities 62.36

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

In terms of our report of even date attached.
For S.B. Billimoria & Co.
Chartered Accountants

PRAMOD Digitally signed by PRAMOD
BAUNATH Date 0200928 2047411
SHUKLA +0530'

Pramod B. Shukla

Partner

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 28, 2020

For Gianender & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Digitally signed by
CSHORE  fommeer L
AGRAWAL  3croms osa0:
G.K. Agrawal

Partner

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 28, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Salaipudhur-Madurai Tollway Limited

1 Digitally si d
Nilesh pores:
Date: 2020.09.28
Shukla et sosso
Nilesh Shukla
Director
DIN: 08617637

Place : Noida
Date : September 28, 2020

Digitally signed

BOVIN fiom
KUMAR 25350525

Bovin Kumar

Director

DIN: 08571658

Place : Noida

Date : September 28, 2020




SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED
CIN: U45309DL2019FLC358747

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD FROM DECEMBER 13, 2019 (THE DATE OF INCORPORATION) TO MARCH

31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Notes

For the period from
December 13, 2019 to
March 31, 2020

I) Revenue
Revenue from operations
Total income

II) Expenses
Other expenses
Total expenses

III) Loss before tax (I-II)
IV) Tax expenses

Current tax

Deferred tax

V) Loss for the period (III-IV)

VI) Other comprehensive income

VII) Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period (V+VI)

Earnings per equity share (Face value Rs 10 per share)

(1) Basic (in Rs.)
(2) Diluted (in Rs.)

10

20.00

20.00

(20.00)

(20.00)

(20.00)

17

(200.03)
(200.03)

The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

In terms of our report of even date attached.
For S.B. Billimoria & Co.

Chartered Accountants

PRAMOD

BAIJNATH
SHUKLA

Digitally signed by
PRAMOD BAUNATH
SHUKLA

Date: 2020.09.28 20:48:05
+05'30"

Pramod B. Shukla
Partner

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 28, 2020

For Gianender & Associates
Chartered Accountants
GIANENDER

KISHORE
AGRAWAL

G.K. Agrawal

Digitally signed by
GIANENDER KISHORE
AGRAWAL

Date: 2020.09.28 20:11:13
+05'30"

Partner

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 28, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Salaipudhur-Madurai Tollway Limited

Nilesh
Shukla

Nilesh Shukla

Director

DIN: 08617637

Place : Noida

Date : September 28, 2020

Digitally signed

by Nilesh Shukla
Date: 2020.09.28
15:45:27 +05'30"

Digitally signed by

BOVIN  ogtatysigne
KUMAR %57z 550
Bovin Kumar
Director

DIN: 08571658
Place : Noida

Date : September 28,

2020




SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED

CIN: U45309DL2019FLC358747

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD FROM DECEMBER 13, 2019 (THE DATE OF INCORPORATION) TO MARCH

31, 2020

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the period from
Particulars December 13, 2019 to March
31, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit/(loss) after tax (20.00)
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (53.54)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 11.59
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities 61.43
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 0.35
Cash generated from operating activities (0.18)
Income tax paid (net) -
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities (A) (0.18)
Cash flows from investing activities
Net cash from /(used in) investing activities (B) -
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceed from issue of Equity share capital 1.00
Proceed from Share Application money pending allotment 8.00
Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C) 9.00
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8.82
(A+B+C) .
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 8.82
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per Ind AS-7 "Statement of Cash flows"
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Balances with the bank

- current account 8.82
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 8.82

Note: Statement of Cash flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Ind AS 7 - "Statement of Cash
flows" notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The above Statement of Cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

In terms of our report of even date attached.
For S.B. Billimoria & Co.
Chartered Accountants

PRAMOD PRAMOD BALNATH
BAUNATH I?JHUK;2200928204842
SHUKLA wosso
Pramod B. Shukla

Partner

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 28, 2020

For Gianender & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Digitally signed by GIANENDER

GIANENDER KISHORE AGRAWAL
K|S HORE AG RAWAL Date: 2020.09.28 20:11:28
+05'30"
G.K. Agrawal
Partner

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 28, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Salaipudhur-Madurai Tollway Limited

1 Digitally signed
N I IeSh by Nilesh Shukla
Date: 2020.09.28
Shukla 5541 0550
Nilesh Shukla
Director
DIN: 08617637

Place : Noida
Date : September 28, 2020

BOVIN byaom ™™
KUMAR
KUM AR bate: 2020.09.28

15:07:37 +05'30"
Bovin Kumar
Director
DIN: 08571658
Place : Noida
Date : September 28, 2020




SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED
CIN: U45309DL2019FLC358747

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD FROM DECEMBER 13, 2019 (THE DATE OF INCORPORATION) TO MARCH 31, 2020

a)

b)

Equity share capital

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Total
Equity shares issued (subscribed) during the period 1.00
Balance at the end of the period i.e. March 31, 2020 1.00

Other equity

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Share Application money

Reserve and Surplus

Particulars ~ Total Equity
pending allotment® Retained earnings*

Share application money received during the period 8.00 - 8.00

Total comprehensive loss for the period - (20.00) (20.00)

Balance at the end of the period i.e. March 31, 2020 8.00 (20.00) (12.00)

*Retained earnings represents accumulated losses.
ASubsequently alloted on April 1, 2020.

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

In terms of our report of even date attached.
For S.B. Billimoria & Co.
Chartered Accountants

igitally signed by
PRAMOD G Saam
BAIJNATH SDH:JKI;?)ZO 09.28
ate: 2020.00.
S H U KLA 20:49:36 +05'30'
Pramod B. Shukla
Partner

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 28, 2020

For Gianender & Associates
Chartered Accountants

GIANENDER 2 e ihone
KISHORE AGRAWAL
AGRAWAL Eg;§;§f)zo.09.zs 20:11:41
G.K. Agrawal

Partner

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 28, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Salaipudhur-Madurai Tollway Limited

H Digitally signed
Nilesh by Nilesh Shukla
Date: 2020.09.28
Shukla 755 4550
Nilesh Shukla
Director

DIN: 08617637
Place : Noida
Date : September 28, 2020

BOVIN
KUMAR 150759 10510

Digitally signed by
BOVINKUMAR
Date: 2020.00.28

Bovin Kumar
Director
DIN: 08571658

Place : Noida
Date : September 28, 2020




SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020

1. Corporate Information

Salaipudhur-Madurai Tollway Limited ("the Company") is a company limited by shares, domiciled in
India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, on December 13, 2019 as a
Special Purpose Vehicle created in pursuance of contract with National Highway Authority of India (NHAI)
for operation, maintenance and management of existing Madurai-Kanyakumari Section of National
Highways- 07 from Km 116.500 to 180.000 in the state of Tamil Nadu under TOT (Toll, operate and
transfer) basis. The rights, privileges and obligations of the Company, particularly the Concession will
commence from the appointed date. The determination of the appointed date will be final and conclusive
from NHAI, once the Company will satisfy all conditions precedent as set out in Article 4 of the concession
agreement. The concession period of the project will be 30 (thirty) years commencing from the
appointed date ("Concession period"). As per the terms and conditions of the Concession Agreement,
the Company shall, at its own cost and expense, procure finance for undertaking the tolling obligations
from the appointed date.

The Company is yet to comply conditions precedent as set out in Article 4 of the Concession agreement
as at the date of approval of these Financial Statements. Further, physical possession of the project
highway has not been transferred to the Company by the NHAI and no commercial operations has been
started during the period ended on March 31, 2020.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
(i) Statement of Compliance

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies, Act (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

As the Company has been incorporated on December 13, 2019, period ended March 31, 2020 is the first
financial period of the Company and accordingly there are no corresponding previous period comparative
figures.

(ii) Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and contingent consideration which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies below

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention except for
the following:
« certain financial assets and liabilities and contingent consideration measured at fair value; and
« defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees rounded off to Lakhs until unless
otherwise stated.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Company considers the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable
value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.



SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
entity can access at measurement date

e Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

e Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

(iii) The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with IndAS requires the management
to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets, liabilities (including
contingent liabilities), income and expenses. The Management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ due to
these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the
periods in which the results are known / materialize.

(iv) Operating cycle

Based on the nature of activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisitions of assets
and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as
twelve months for the purpose of classifications of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

(v) Current and non-current classification

The balance sheet presents current and non-current assets, and current and non-current liabilities, as
separate classifications. For this purpose, an asset is classified as current if:
It is expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle;or
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
It is expected to realise the asset within 12 months after the reporting period; or
The asset is a cash or equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if:
It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in its settlement by the
issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does not affect this classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
(vi) Foreign currency translation

i Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

if. Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing on the date of the transaction or at rates that closely approximate the rate at
the date of the transaction.



SALAIPUDHUR-MADURAI TOLLWAY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2020

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognized in profit and loss.

(vii) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable. The Company recognizes
revenue from contracts with customers when it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring the
promised goods or service to a customer. The revenue is recognized to the extent of transaction price
allocated to the performance obligation satisfied. Revenue is recognized as and when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Other items of income are recognized as and when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

(viii) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and cumulative
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to qualifying assets and includes borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the
Company's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

Depreciation on assets has been provided on Straight-line basis at the estimated useful lives as defined
in the schedule II of the Companies Act. The estimated useful life and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimates being accounted for on
a prospective basis. Depreciation on additions/ deductions is calculated pro-rata from/ to the month of
additions/ deductions.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal of an item of property plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement or profit and loss.

Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised
carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining useful life.

(ix) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable
to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible
assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortization,
and cumulative impairment.

Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their useful life. The estimated useful life is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets that are not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed
as "Intangible assets under development".
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(x) Government grant
Grants from governments are recognized at fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the
Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income are deferred and recognized in profit or loss over the periods in
which the Company recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate.

Government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct, or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are deducted from the carrying amount of such non-current assets.

(xi) Cash and cash equivalent

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

(xii) Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized at transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent, there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as prepayment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.

The fair value of the liability portion of the optionally convertible debentures is determined using a
market interest rate for equivalent non-convertible debentures. The amount is recorded as a liability on
an amortized cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption of debentures. The reminder of
the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the compound instrument. This is recognized and
included in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently remeasured.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

Where the terms of the financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a
creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognized in
profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of financial liability and
the fair value of equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with
the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not
classify the liability as current, if lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of
the financial statement for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

(xiii) Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying assets are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale. Capitalization of borrowing costs is
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suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active
development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(xiv) Leases
The Company has adopted new Ind AS 116. The impact of adoption is not material and as such there
is no impact on profit before taxation, profit after taxation, Earnings Per Share or cash flow.

Leases are recognized as a right-to-use assets and corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Company. The Company currently has only short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets, which are accounted for as under.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of real estate properties that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and all leases of low value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(xv) Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of past events and it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be made.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that the reimbursement
will be received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes in case of a present obligation arising from past events, when
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a present
obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible. Contingent assets are
disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefits are probable.

(xvi) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or
loss.

a) Financial Assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognized
financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets

(i) Classification of Financial Assets
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Investments in debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured
at amortised cost (unless the same are designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)):
e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and
e The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (unless the same are designated as fair value through
profit or loss)

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments at FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments and all changes are
recognized in profit or loss.

(ii) Amortized cost and effective interest method
Income is recognized on an effective interest method as per Ind AS 109 for debt instruments
other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and is included in the "Other income" line item.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets (Expected credit loss model)
An impairment loss on financial asset is established when there is objective evidence that the
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Impairment loss if any are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss for the period.

(iv) De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognize a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognized in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss on disposal of that financial asset.

b) Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition, as financial liabilities as fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized costs using Effective Interest Rate
method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are subsequently measured at fair
value.

Financial guarantee contracts are subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized
less cumulative amortization.

Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires.
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c) Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

(xvii) Earnings per share

i. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year/period by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year/period.

ii. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) for the year/period as adjusted
for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes)
relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares
which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential
equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease
the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are
deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later
date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares
been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of
equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share
splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

(xviii) Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on current year's taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. The current income tax charge is calculated based
on tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically
evaluates, positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and provisions are established where appropriate based on amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However deferred income tax is not accounted if it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability that at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax
loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset/liability is realized or settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, when the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same
authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity wherein the related tax is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(xix) Impairment of assets
The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each reporting date are reviewed for impairment
if any indication of impairment exists. The following intangible assets are tested for impairment each
financial year/period even if there is no indication that the asset is impaired:

(a) an intangible asset that is not yet available for use; and
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(b) an intangible asset that is amortized over a period exceeding ten years from the date when the
asset is available for use.

If the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is
recognized for such excess amount. The impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimated future cash flows have not been adjusted.

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset (other than a revalued asset)
in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss
is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of revalued assets such reversal is not recognized.

(xx) Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of applicable Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense
for the period presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

(xxi) Recent accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification, which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.
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3 Cash and cash equivalents (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particular

As at
March 31,2020

Balance with the bank:
- current account

8.82

Total

8.82

Other current assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particular RIS

March 31,2020
Prepayments 53.54
Total 53.54
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5 Equity share capital
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at

Particul
articulars March 31,2020

Authorised share capital :

70,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 700.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid :

10,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1.00

1.00

Footnotes:
a. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as on December 13, 2019 and as on March 31, 2020

As at March 31,2020
Particulars No. of shares held Amount in Rs.
Lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the period - -
Addition(subscribed) during the period 10,000 1.00
Balance at the end of the period 10,000 1.00

b. Terms and rights attached to equity shares

(i) The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the
compliance of all applicable laws and approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual general Meeting.

(i) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive surplus from sale of assets
after setting off of the liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c. Shares in respect of each class in the Company held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company
including shares held by or by subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding company
in aggregate;

As at March 31,2020

Particulars No. of shares held Amount in Rs.
Lakhs
Cube Mobility Investment Pte. Limited, the holding Company along 10.000 1.00
with its nominees ! )
10,000 1.00

d. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, share issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought
back during the period of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date

The Company has not issued any bonus shares nor has there been any buy back of shares during the period from December 13,
2019 to March 31, 2020.

e. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder L [l e 20D -
No. of shares held % Holding
Cgbe. MObI|ItY Investment Pte. Limited, the holding Company along 10,000 100.00
with its nominees
Total 10,000 100.00

6 Other equity
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at

Particul
articulars March 31, 2020

Share application money pending allotment
Share application money received during the period® 8.00

Balance at the end of the period 8.00

Reserves and surplus
-Retained earnings* (Debit balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss)
Balance as on December 13, 2019 -

Total comprehensive loss for the period (20.00)
Balance at the end of the period (20.00)
Total (12.00)

*Retained earnings represents accumulated losses.
ASubsequently alloted on April 1, 2020.
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7 Trade Payables
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at

Particulars March 31,2020

-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -

-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11.59

Total 11.59

*The disclosures pursuant to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘"MSMED Act’)
are as follows:

As at

Particular March 31, 2020

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting
year

(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day.

-Principal payment -

-Interest payment -

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year -

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting
year

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on
the basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

8 Other financial liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
. As at
Particulars March 31,2020
Payable to related party (Refer note 14 and note 15) 61.43
Total 61.43
9 Other Current Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
. As at
Particulars March 31,2020
Statutory dues 0.35
Total 0.35
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10

11

12

A)

B)

C)

D)

13

Other expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)
For the period from
Particulars December 13, 2019
to March 31, 2020
Rent 0.24
Rates and taxes 7.15
Professional charges 2.46
Insurance 7.89
Payments to auditors (Including taxes)
-Statutory audit fees 2.26
Total 20.00

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company has no borrowings
as on March 31, 2020.

Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to variety of financial risks : market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is to
foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Board of
Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework.

The Board of Directors identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company'’s activities.

Market risk
The market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rate. The Company is not exposed to foreian currency risk as it has no borrowing in foreian currency.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The company is not exposed to interest rate risk as there are no borrowings on floating rate of interest .

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial assets.

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk due to trade and other pavables.

The Company measures risk by forecasting cash flows.

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company ensures that it
has sufficient fund to meet expected operational expenses, servicing of financial obligations in the form of bank deposits.

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment
periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Company can be required to pay. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to
pay.

(Rs. in Lakhs)

More than

Particul i A t to 1 1-2 2 -

articulars Carrying Amoun Upto 1 year years 5 years B
Non Derivative Financial Liability
Non Interest bearina
Trade pavable 11.59 11.59 - - -
Other financial liabilities 61.43 61.43 - - -
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an
obligation.

The Company does not have trade receivables as on March 31, 2020. Hence, the management believes that the Company will not be
exposed to any major credit risk.

Other financial assets
The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2020 is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

Disclosure of financial instruments by category and fair value of Financial asset and liabilties at amortized cost

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2020

Particular Level Note No.

Carrying amount Fair value
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 1 3 8.82 8.82
Total Financial Assets 8.82 8.82
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 1 7 11.59 11.59
Other financial liabilities 1 8 61.43 61.43
Total Financial Liabilities 73.02 73.02

The carrying amount of other financial liabilities is measured at amortised cost and is considered to be the same as its fair value, due to
There are no amounts recognised at Fair value through Profit or Loss and other comprehensive income.
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15

A(i)

A(ii)

(B)

(©)

(D)

16

The National Highways Authority of India ("NHAI") had put up nine stretch of assets spread across Uttar Pradesh, Jharkhand, Bihar and
Tamil Nadu states in India for auction under toll -operate -transfer (TOT) model ("TOT3") in the month of July 2019. Cube Mobility
Investments Pte. Ltd. ("Holding Company") has emerged as the successful bidder for the TOT3 road assets for a concession period of 30
years. Persuant to this, nine Special Purpose Vehicles ("SPVs”) has been incorporated in India as 100% subsidiaries of Holding Company
for the purpose of signing nine concession agreements with the NHAI in terms of Request for Proposal (RFP) document. On December 27,
2019, the Company and eight other SPVs (fellow subsidiaries) has entered into the respective Concession Agreements (“"CA") with the
NHAIL .

With respect to the project, the Company is required to procure annual insurance. One of the fellow subsidiary namely Jhansi Lalitpur
Tollway Limited has negotiated and paid insurance premium amounting Rs. 61.43 Lakhs on behalf of the Company and have claimed the
reimbursement for expense from the Company. Accordingly, the same has been shown as "Payable to related party" under note 8 of the

financial statements.

Related parties

Name of related party where control exists

S. No. Name of the related party Nature of relationship

1 ISQ Asia Infrastructure Holdings II Pte. Ltd|Ultimate Holding company w.e.f December 13, 2019

2 Cube Mobility Investment Pte Limited Holding company w.e.f December 13, 2019

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the period:

S. No. Name of the related party Nature of relationship
1 Cube Mobility Investement Pte Limited Holding company w.e.f December 13 2019
2 Jhansi-Lalitpur Tollway Limited Fellow subsidiary w.e.f December 17, 2019

Note: The name of the related parties and the nature of relationship are as identified by the management.

Transactions with related parties during the period ended March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the period from

S. No. |Name of the related party Nature of transactions December 13, 2019 to
March 31,2020 |

Cube Mobility Investement Pte Limited Issue of share capital 1.00

2 Cube Mobility Investement Pte Limited Share application money received 8.00

3 Jhansi-Lalitpur Tollway Limited Reimbursement of expense to fellow subsidiary 61.43

Related parties balance as at March 31, 2020
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at

March 31, 2020

S. No. |Name of the related party Nature of transactions
(Payable) / Receivable
1 Cube Mobility Investement Pte Limited Share application money pending allotment (8.00)
2 Jhansi-Lalitpur Tollway Limited Other payable (61.43)

Cube Mobility Investment Pte Limited (Holding company) has provided performance security amounting Rs. 6118 Lakhs in aggregate to
National Highway Authority of India (NHAI) for the due performance of the Company's and 8 other SPVs' (fellow subsidiaries) obligations
under the 9 Concession agreements respectively entered in relation to projects comprising of 9 National Highway stretches (Bundle- 3) on
Tall Nnarata Trancfar Mada

-" " (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars et
March 31,2020 |
Reconciliation of tax expense
|Loss before tax (20.00)
Enacted Income tax rate applicable to Company 26%
[ Income tax expense/(benefit) calculated at enacted (5.20)
i i ini le profit 0.27

#

Fffects of unrecoanised deferred tax assets/(liabilities) on deductible temnarary differences

4.93

-Carried forward business losses

| Total tax expense on continuing operations

#Deferred tax asset (net) in respect of following deductible temporary items has not been recognised in the books of accounts as in the
(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at

Nature of timing difference March 31, 2020 |
| Carried forward business losses (18.98)
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17 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 33 "Earnings per share"

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

For the period from
Particulars December 13, 2019 to
March 31. 2020

Basic/diluted earnings per equity share:
Loss for the period attributable to owners of the Company for calculating

basic earnings per share (Rs. in Lakhs) A (20.00)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for calculating

; . B 10,000
basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per equity share (Rs.) A/B (200.03)
Diluted earnings per equity share (Rs.) A/B (200.03)

Disclosure of segment information pursuant to Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments"

The Company is engaged in the business of construction, operation and maintenance of Toll road projects on a Toll Operate Transfer (TOT)
basis. Considering the nature of Company’s business and operations, there are no separate reportable segments (business and/or
geographical) in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 108 ‘Segment Reporting’. The Chief Operational Decision
Maker monitors the operating results as one single segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in the financial statements.

As at March 31, 2020, the Company is having negative net worth of Rs. 11 Lakhs. The Company is incorporated on December 13, 2020 and
is yet to commence commercial operations as stated in note 1 of the financial statements. The Company is confident of getting hand over of
the project from the NHAI and thereby commencing its commercial operations shortly.

Further, subsequent to the year-end the Company has received Rs. 260 Lakhs from its Holding Company in the form of Optionally
Convertible debentures (OCDs) to meet out expenditure related to general corporate purpose. Accordingly, the Company has prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Uncertainities related with COVID-19 pandemic:

As per the impact assessment of COVID-19 carried out by the Management, the Company believes that there is no significant impact of
COVID-19 pandemic on the financial position and performance of the Company including to its assessment of liquidity and going concern
assumption. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic might be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these Financial
Statements and the Company will closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

There were no litigation pending against the Company which could materially impact its financial position as at the end of the period.

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on September 28, 2020.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Salaipudhur-Madurai Tollway Limited

H Digitally signed
N | |eS h by Nilesh Shukla BOVIN Efé'éwfu"ﬁin

Date: 2020.09.28 OVIN KUA
S h u kla 1;:5;09 +05'30' KUMAR Sigir i
Nilesh Shukla Bovin Kumar
Director Director

DIN: 08617637 DIN: 08571658
Place : Noida Place : Noida

Date : September 28, 2020 Date : September 28, 2020
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Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Plot no. 6, Site No. 21 7% Floor, Building 10 Tower B
Geeta Mandir Marg, DLF Cyber City Complex,
New Rajendra Nagar DLF City Phase - II
New Delhi - 110060 Gurugram, Haryana - 122 002

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of Salaipudhur-Madurai Tollway Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Salaipudhur-Madurai Tollway Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020 and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

e QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

o If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
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position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) Reporting on the adequacy of Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, under section 143(3)(i) of the Act is not
applicable in view of the exemption available to the Company in terms of the notification no.
G.S.R. 583(E) dated June 13, 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of
India, read with general circular No. 08/2017 dated July 25, 2017.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, no remuneration has been paid by
the Company to its directors during the period and hence, provisions of section 197 of the Act
are not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i. The Company does not have any pending litigations, which would impact its financial
position. Refer Note 21 of the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses. Refer Note 22 of the financial statements.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company. Refer Note 23 of the financial statements.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “"Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Gianender & Associates For S.B. Billimoria & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 004661N) (Firm’s Registration No. 101496W)

igitally signed b igitally signe
GIANENDER 23\:55&,05?} KISHORE PRAMOD ERQA:"‘gyD BgA”g’:?H
KISHORE SGRAE(/)/;|60928202229 BALNATH LA

ate: .09.. :22:. ate: .09..
AGRAWAL  ‘oeso SHUKLA o501 10850,
G.K. Agrawal Pramod B. Shukla
Partner Partner
(Membership No. 081603) (Membership No. 104337)
UDIN: 20081603AAAALK4089 UDIN: 20104337AAAACV8875
New Delhi New Delhi

September 28, 2020 September 28, 2020



Gianender & Associates S.B. Billimoria & Co.

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment, and hence reporting under clause
(i) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees and hence
reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposit during the period nor has any unclaimed deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and hence reporting under clause (v) of the Order is
not applicable.

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business/activities during the period, reporting
under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Tax
deducted as source and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate
authorities. Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business /activities during the
period, statutory dues in respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance and Customs Duty are not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is incorporated on December 13, 2020, therefore, reporting related to
undisputed statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period more than six months
is not applicable.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and
Value Added Tax as on March 31, 2020 on account of disputes.

The Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and
government or has not issued any debentures. Hence reporting under clause (viii) of the order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the Order is not
applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the period.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not paid/provided any managerial remuneration and hence reporting under clause (xi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.
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(xiii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in
compliance with Section 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. During the period, the provisions
of section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)  During the period, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the period
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its
holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons connected with them and hence provisions
of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934.
For Gianender & Associates For S.B. Billimoria & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 004661N) (Firm’s Registration No. 101496W)
igitally signe Digitally signed by

GIANENDER R T
KISHORE AGRAWAL 382?3:5020.09428 20:22:47 SHUKLA Eg§§3:gpzo.o9.zs 20:51:09
G.K. Agrawal Pramod B. Shukla
Partner Partner
(Membership No. 081603) (Membership No. 104337)
UDIN: 20081603AAAALK4089 UDIN: 20104337AAAACV8875
New Delhi New Delhi

September 28, 2020 September 28, 2020



